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PG&E CPE’s 2021 CPE Local RA RFO  
Questions and Answers 

 

General RFO Questions 

Question 1 

Will the CPE evaluate quantitative attributes before qualitative attributes? 

Answer 1 

The order of the qualitative and quantitative evaluations is not relevant in determining the competitive 
value of each Qualified Offer. 

 

Question 2 

Is there any price at which PG&E CPE will reject Offers in this RFO? 

Answer 2 

No, there is no price above which PG&E CPE will reject Offers in this RFO. PG&E CPE will conduct a net 
market value assessment on all Qualified Competitive Offers to compare an Offer’s cost to its benefits. 

 

Question 3  

Is the CAISO CPM process and soft offer price cap considered when evaluating offers? 

Answer 3 

Please review Section IX of the Solicitation Protocol. Per the Solicitation Protocol, pursuant to Ordering 
Paragraph 14 of CPUC Decision 20-06-002, PG&E CPE will consider the costs of potential alternatives as a 
qualitative factor when evaluating Offers. 

 

Question 4 

What, if any, qualitative factors would severely limit the likelihood an offered resource is accepted? Or, 
what, if any, qualitative factors would trump the quantitative evaluation? 

Answer 4 

All Qualified Offers and their respective attributes will be compared on an absolute and relative basis. 
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Question 5 

If the LCR RCM premium is zero, does it matter whether I participate as a Non-Compensated Self-Shown 
Resource or a Compensated Self-Shown Resource? 

Answer 5 

Participants should review the Solicitation Protocol and review the different eligibility requirements for 
Self-Shown Resources to determine which process best fits their needs. 

 

Question 6 

Given that the local premium is updated every year, does that mean that the price of the Compensated 
Self Shown Offer may increase or decrease after contract execution?  

Answer 6 

Per PG&E CPE’s understanding of the LCR RCM Decision, the pre-determined local price is fixed at 
contract execution. 

 

Question 7 

Will future PG&E CPE solicitations solicit Delivery Terms of up to 36 months for the Shown Local RA 
product? 

Answer 7 

PG&E CPE cannot make any commitments regarding future solicitations at this time. 

 

Question 8 

Will PG&E CPE publish targeted procurement volumes before and after the Non-Compensated Self-
Shown Commitment Process has concluded? 

Answer 8 

No, PG&E CPE does not plan to publish any target procurement volumes. Participants interested in the 
local capacity requirements can review the CAISO’s latest Local Capacity Technical Study. 

 

Question 9 

Will PG&E-CPE procure above its Local RA procurement targets? 

Answer 9 

PG&E CPE cannot commit to the amount of Local RA it will procure at this time. It will holistically 
evaluate the Offers it receives as part of this RFO. 
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Question 10 

When will PG&E-CPE find out if its self-show deadline extension request is granted? 

Answer 10 

At this time, PG&E CPE is not sure when the request will be reviewed. 

 

Question 11 

Will PG&E CPE consider longer Delivery Terms than those detailed in the Solicitation Protocol? 

Answer 11 

Please review Section V.C of the Solicitation Protocol. Per the Solicitation Protocol, PG&E CPE is seeking 
to enter Agreements for the following Delivery Terms in this RFO: 

• Non-Compensated Self-Shown Resources: May have a Delivery Term of 1 to 24 Months, subject 
to the requirements outlined in the Solicitation Protocol. 

• Compensated Self-Shown Resources: May have a Delivery Term of 1 to 24 Months, subject to 
the requirements outlined in the Solicitation Protocol. 

• Compensated Offered Resources: May have a Delivery Term of 1 to 48 Months, subject to the 
requirements outlined in the Solicitation Protocol. 
 

Question 12 

Does the Delivery Term have to include both the 2023 and 2024 compliance years? 

Answer 12 

Please review Section V.C of the Solicitation Protocol. Per the Solicitation Protocol, PG&E CPE is seeking 
to enter into Agreements with delivery periods commencing in 2023 or 2024 with varying terms and 
conditions depending on the resource category. 

 

Question 13 

What does “50% of the delivery term must be within relevant compliance years 2023 and 2024” mean? 

Answer 13 

Please review Section V.D of the Solicitation Protocol. Per the Solicitation Protocol, An example of 50 
percent of the Delivery Term occurring within the applicable compliance years would be an Agreement 
with a Delivery Term of two years that is expected to begin deliveries on January 1, 2024 and expected 
to conclude deliveries on December 31, 2025. 

 

Question 14 

Will the CPE accept redlines of the Agreement Forms? 

Answer 14 

Please review Section V.D of the Solicitation Protocol. Per the Solicitation Protocol, PG&E CPE prefers to 
execute agreements that are substantially similar to the form Agreements provided. Participants must 
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provide a fully completed copy of the relevant Agreement, including any proposed markups, as part of 
their Offer package which will be used by PG&E CPE in its review process. PG&E CPE strongly encourages 
all Participants to carefully review the terms and obligations of each Agreement in advance of 
submitting an Offer. 

 

Question 15 

For the Project Size component of Resource Eligibility, PG&E CPE states that resources must have a 
Maximum Generation Capacity of at least 1 MW. Should that be “minimum generation capacity”? 

Answer 15  

Please review Section VI.C of the Solicitation Protocol. Per the Solicitation Protocol, New Resources 
offered into this Solicitation must have a Maximum Generation Capacity, as defined in the CAISO's 
Generator Resource Data Template, of at least 1 MW. For example, New Resources with a Maximum 
Generation Capacity greater than or equal to 1 MW would meet this requirement. 

 

Question 16 

If a resource is offered for a specific delivery year, and the Offer is rejected, will this preclude an Offer 
for the same resource being selected in future PG&E CPE solicitations? 

Answer 16 

No, rejection of an Offer in this RFO would not preclude the selection of an Offer for the same resource 
in future PG&E CPE solicitations. 

 

Question 17 

If RA rules change, does that mean if the NQC changes or the ELCC calculations change then the volumes 
would change to those volumes?  What if the ELCC or the NQC calculation increases for a resource? 

Answer 17 

Change in law associated with RA counting rules is addressed in the applicable Agreement Forms. Please 
review the applicable Agreement Form for additional details. 

 

Question 18 

Can a non-CPUC jurisdictional entity submit a Competitive Offer for Self-Shown Local RA from a 
Compensated Self-Shown Resource? 

Answer 18 

Per Attachment 2A of the Solicitation Protocol, only CPUC LSEs are eligible to submit Competitive Offers 
for Self-Shown Local RA from Compensated Self-Shown Resources in the Competitive Offer Process. 
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Question 19 

How will a Participant receive compensation for a Competitive Offer from a Compensated Self-Shown 
Resource? 

Answer 19 

Compensation for Compensated Self-Shown Resources is addressed in the applicable Agreement Form. 
Please review the applicable Agreement Form for additional details. 

 

Question 20 

How is PG&E CPE ensuring that confidential information from third parties received as part of the RFO is 
not shared with PG&E as Participant? 

Answer 20 

Per Section I of the Solicitation Protocol, consistent with the CPE Decision, PG&E CPE has developed 
both a competitive neutrality rule, which was adopted in the LCR RCM Decision, and a strict code of 
conduct in consultation with the Cost Allocation Mechanism Procurement Review Group (“CAM PRG”), 
an Independent Evaluator (“IE”), and the CPUC’s Energy Division (“Energy Division”), to prevent the 
sharing of confidential, market sensitive information that PG&E CPE receives from third parties as part 
of this Solicitation. 

 

Question 21 

For Offers from New resources, what happens if the resource fails to meet its Initial Delivery Date or 
Initial Shown Date due to development delays? 

Answer 21 

Failure to meet the Initial Delivery Date or Initial Shown Date is addressed in the applicable Agreement 
Form. Please review the applicable Agreement Form for New Resources for additional details. 

 

Question 22 

Will PG&E CPE accept any products that are not described in the Solicitation Protocol or the Agreement 
Forms as part of the 2021 CPE Local RA RFO? 

Answer 22 

PG&E CPE is only seeking Offers for the Products listed within the Solicitation Protocol as part of this 
RFO. 
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Question 23 

Under the RA Agreement, can a Seller use a resource other than the Project to meet its obligations?  

Answer 23 

Per Article 3 of the RA Agreement, Seller shall provide to Buyer the Product exclusively from the Project. 
Please review the applicable Agreement Form and Participants’ Webinar materials on the RFO website 
for additional details. 
 

Question 24 

Under the RA Agreement, is Seller responsible for managing outages and substitution with the CAISO for 
the Project? 

Answer 24 

Per Article 4 of the RA Agreement, Seller, or a third party designated by Seller, shall be the Scheduling 
Coordinator (SC) for the Project. Seller shall comply with all applicable CAISO Tariff provisions, CPUC 
Decisions and all other applicable rules, requirements or Laws, including any Bidding of the Project to 
meet any Must Offer Obligations, in order to deliver the Product to Buyer and allow Buyer to use the 
Product. Please review the applicable Agreement Form and Participants’ Webinar materials on the RFO 
website for additional details. 
 

Question 25 

Does executing a self-shown RA agreement for the local RA attribute with PG&E CPE preclude the 
showing party from being able to resell the system RA (and flex RA if applicable) from that same 
resource to another party at a later date? 

Answer 25 

Per Article 3 of the Shown Agreement, Provider shall not sell any Capacity Attributes from the Project 
that form part of the Showing Quantity or that are otherwise required for CPE to use the Showing 
Quantity for the purposes of the Compliance Showings.  

 

Question 26 

Does PG&E CPE intend to procure enough Local RA capacity to meet 100% of the local RA needs for 
2023 and 2024 in each of the local areas in PG&E’s service territory, in the 2021 Local RA RFO? 

Answer 26 

PG&E CPE cannot commit to the amount of Local RA it will procure at this time. It will holistically 
evaluate the Offers it receives as part of this RFO. Please review CPUC Decision 20-06-002 for details on 
CPE procurement obligations.  
 



Last updated: June 1, 2021 
Subject to PG&E CPE’s Continued Review and Revision 
 
Question 27 
If a Participant signs a PPA after completion of this CPE solicitation, but which will be online by 2023, will 
this Participant be able to self-show or offer this resource in a future solicitation? 
 
Answer 27 
PG&E CPE cannot make any commitments regarding future solicitations at this time. 

 
Question 27 

Are Participants allowed to submit a version of proposed markups for each Offer submitted? 
 
Answer 27 
Per Section X of the Solicitation Protocol, Participants may not submit more than version of proposed 
markups for each relevant Agreement. For example, a Participant submitting multiple Non-
Compensated Self-Shown Offers for Existing Resources may only submit one version of proposed 
markups of the Shown Resource Adequacy Agreement for Existing Resources. 

 

Question 28 

Under the RA Agreement, what quantity of Capacity Attributes is Seller obligated to deliver in each 
Contract Month? 
 
Answer 28 
Per Article 3 of the RA Agreement, Seller shall provide Buyer the Contracted Percentage of all Capacity 
Attributes that may be calculated or derived from the Operational Characteristics, which must be 
exclusively from the Project, during each Contract Month. Please review the applicable Agreement Form 
and Participants’ Webinar materials on the RFO website for additional details. 

 

Question 29 

Under the RA Agreement, how is the quantity of Capacity Attributes delivered from Seller to Buyer 
determined and how does it impact payment to Seller? 
 
Answer 29 
Per Article 3 of the RA Agreement, the lowest daily quantity that Seller submits for each of the Capacity 
Attributes in a Supply Plan shall be deemed to be the amount of each of the Capacity Attributes of 
Product that Seller has delivered for such Showing Year or Showing Month, as applicable. Please review 
the applicable Agreement Form and Participants’ Webinar materials on the RFO website for additional 
details on how the Monthly Payment is calculated. 
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Offer Form Questions 

Question 1 

For Offer Form fields that require a number to be entered but the response is “None” (e.g., start and run 
hour limitations), what value should a Participant use? 

Answer 1 

For start and run hour limitations, if the response is “None” but a number is required, please leave the 
cell blank. 

 

Question 2 

Are Participants required to select an “Energy Settlement” in the initial setup of the Offer Form? 

Answer 2 

No, Participants are only required to select an “Energy Settlement” as part of their Offer Form submittal 
if they are offering the Bundled RA with Energy Settlement product as part of their Offer. 

 

Question 3 

For the Transaction section of the Offer Form, what information should a Participant enter into the RA 
Attributes section if it does not have the full NQC output of the resource under contract? 

Answer 3 

In the RA Attributes fields under the Transaction section of the Offer Form, Participants should enter the 
full NQC of the resource. The Contracted Percentage fields that are entered by the Participant will then 
be used to determine the percentage of RA Attributes that are offered from the Participant to PG&E 
CPE.  

Per Section X of the Solicitation Protocol, Participants are strongly advised to carefully review the 
relevant Agreement(s) prior to inputting data into Appendix A1-A4 – Offer Form. PG&E CPE will utilize 
the information from the Offer Form submitted by a Participant to populate the relevant data in the 
Agreement(s). Participants should input data into Appendix A – Offer Form with the understanding that 
this information will result in terms with contractual implications. 

Please reference the Offer Form Guide that was posted to the CPE RFO website for more details: 
CPE_Offer_Form_Guide_Appendices_A3_and_A4.pdf. 

 

Question 4 

How does a Participant enter a Delivery Term that is less than one year within the Offer Form? 

Answer 4 

As part of the Setup Initial Offer prompt within the Offer Form, Participants can specify the length of the 
Offer’s Delivery Term in months. 

 

https://www.pge.com/pge_global/common/pdfs/for-our-business-partners/resource-adequacy-central-procurement/CPE_Offer_Form_Guide_Appendices_A3_and_A4.pdf
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Question 5 

Why are Participants required to enter Operational Characteristics data for Compensated Offered 
Resources within the Offer Form? 

Answer 5 

The Operational Characteristic data for Compensated Offered Resources is used within the relevant 
Form Agreement. Per Section X of the Solicitation Protocol, Participants are strongly advised to carefully 
review the relevant Agreement(s) prior to inputting data into Appendix A1-A4 – Offer Form. PG&E CPE 
will utilize the information from the Offer Form submitted by a Participant to populate the relevant data 
in the Agreement(s). Participants should input data into Appendix A – Offer Form with the 
understanding that this information will result in terms with contractual implications. 

 

Question 6 

For the Non-Compensated Self-Shown Resource Offer Form, are Participants required to populate the 
Operational Characteristics section for Existing Resources? 

Answer 6 

In the Non-Compensated Self-Shown Resource Offer Form, Operational Characteristic information is not 
required for Existing Resources. Please review the latest version of Appendix A1 – Offer Form – Non-
Compensated Self-Shown Resource on the RFO website for additional details. 

 

Question 7 

For an existing facility located at a single point of interconnection (POI) with multiple CAISO Resource 
IDs, should the Participant submit one Offer Form per CAISO Resource ID or one Offer Form per POI? 

Answer 7 

Per Section VI of the Solicitation Protocol, offered resources must have a single CAISO Resource 
Identification (“CAISO Resource ID”), as defined in the CAISO Tariff. As such, if an existing facility has 
multiple CAISO Resource IDs each CAISO Resource ID should be considered a separate resource and 
Participants should submit a separate Offer Form for each CAISO Resource ID. 
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